Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights 4t B A 6 2,205 2,200
Property, plant and equipment WE - WEREE 7 140,626 157,547
Intangible assets mILEE 8 12,226 13,953
Prepayment for property, plant and - BE R
equipment Rz BN RIA - 27
Long-term loan and receivables RHER R ERRIE 134 329
Investment in an associate R—EBERAZ
BE 10 3,042 1,008
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE 19 58 42
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 158,291 175,106
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 12 91,096 95,338
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 13 41,703 32,714
Amount due from the non-controlling NG
interest of a subsidiary FEVEAR B 2 KB 1,405 1,431
Prepayments and other receivables TEfFFRE R
H h & W skoE 9,339 11,219
Current income tax recoverable B EF AT Y [B] BT 15 A2 41 4
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 14 7,387 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMkReEED 14 42,567 45,518
193,538 186,261
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHEERBEE 7)) 1,900 -
Total current assets REBEEH#E 195,438 186,261
Total assets EERE 353,729 361,367
EQUITY En
Equity attributable to owners of AABEBAELEER
the Company
Share capital fi% 72 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves G
— Proposed final dividend —EEARHRE 16, 26 2,205 4,740
— Others —E 16 254,977 251,870
272,410 271,838
Non-controlling interest IR (1,010) (217)
Total equity ERBE 271,400 271,621

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
Note US$’000 us$'000
Bt 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Bank borrowings RITHEE 18 5,267 9,946
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHARE 19 6,180 6,538
Provision for long service payment REIRG e EE 1,262 1,277
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEAEE 12,709 17,761
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JERTE SRR 17 23,113 23,817
Accruals and other payables EstERAR
H A & 58 15,732 12,846
Amount due to a related party FERBREEALRIE  34(d) 323 2,399
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 23,273 22,813
Current portion of non-current bank ERBRITIEEZ
borrowings AN ERER 15 18 4,679 5,314
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTBIi B E 2,500 4,796
Total current liabilities FEaEAH 69,620 71,985
Total liabilities BfERAE 82,329 89,746
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 353,729 361,367
Net current assets REBEEFE 125,818 114,276
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBERS 284,109 289,382

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

PHBRRCEEFEEHMTATIALIRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
R B3

Director Director

BE BE

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—H
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Note US$’000 Us$’'000
B 5 FTEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets EmVEE ) 8 2,619 3,828
Investments in subsidiaries REBRa ZEE 9 166,030 165,241
Long-term loan to a subsidiary BY—HMBARZ
RHEIE 9 - 13,200
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZ
®E 10 3,308 1,230
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 171,957 183,499
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Y B &8 1 B R T 9 56,788 50,146
Prepayments and other receivables TR A FRIE K
H A & Y 3K0E 1,827 2,262
Current income tax recoverable BV HA AT 4 3] P 15 71 9 9
Short-term bank deposits EERITE R 14 2,005 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 14 1,560 723
Total current assets REBEELE 62,189 53,140
Total assets EEHAE 234,146 236,639
EQUITY i _
Equity attributable to owners of ZAN/NSIEZ RN A
the Company W2
Share capital P 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves i
— Proposed final dividend —EEARHRE 16, 26 2,205 4,740
— Others —EM 16 210,764 206,497
Total equity XA 228,197 226,465
LIABILITIES a8\
Current liabilities RBEME
Accruals and other payables FEsHE A &
H fth J& 1 IE 1,596 1,925
Bank borrowings RITIEE 18 4,030 5,850
Amount due to a related party JENBREALFIE  34(d) 323 2,399
Total current liabilities REEEETHE 5,949 10,174
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 234,146 236,639
Net current assets REBEEFREE 56,240 42,966
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 228,197 226,465

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

PBRROCEETGEHR LA TIALIRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
BRI B

Director Director

E E

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2012 2011
—E—_F —_F——
Note Us$’000 US$'000
{hg=d FTEx FET
Revenue W 2= 20 372,922 382,900
Cost of sales 8 & AR 22 (311,422) (326,676)
Gross profit EA 61,500 56,224
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblzs ~ (518)
— 5 21 616 (311)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIELE
held for sale ERBEE 2 UWZE  6(i), 31 - 8,464
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX 22 (23,967) (22,407)
Administrative expenses TR X 22 (28,387) (29,648)
Operating profit BERF 9,762 12,322
Finance income B BURA 1,457 741
Finance costs B (1,211) (1,820)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEURA ()
— 5 23 246 (1,079)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate JEAE — B EE & A A
BBz g e 10 (44) (222)
Profit before income tax MRETB B AR R 9,964 11,021
Income tax expense FriS#iF X 24 (3,413) (5,084)
Profit for the year KEEEF 25 6,551 5,937
Profit attributable to: DT&FEMERF:
Owners of the Company KRAEHEB A 7,342 7,902
Non-controlling interest JEIERR (791) (1,965)
6,551 5,937
Earnings per share for profit AXRREEAELER
attributable to the owners of the mAMzERAER
Company during the year (expressed (AR EMWGIR)
in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BRELER 27 0.48 0.52
Diluted earnings per share SRESER 27 0.48 0.52
Dividends ®’E 26 4,405 4,740

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ReEzEkER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FER FET
Profit for the year AFERF 6,551 5,937
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEWA
Currency translation differences N =5 168 3,178
Total comprehensive income rEEZEBALLE
for the year 6,719 9,115
Total comprehensive income DTEFEEEEE
for the year attributable to: THEHBALRE:
— Owners of the Company —ARNEHEB A 7,512 10,963
- Non-controlling interest — IR (793) (1,848)
Total comprehensive income AEEXEBRALE
for the year 6,719 9,115

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERRBEHX

Year ended 31 December 2012 HEZZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAREL
Non-
Share Share Exchange Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
RA& RGEE ERfE ABRE REEF @i FERER BRAR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn TEn Txn Txn Tin TEn Tin TEn
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE-——5-A-Az&H 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 264,545 1,631 266,176
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit(loss) for the year AFERA/ (BR) - - - - 7902 7902 (1.965) 5,937
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences EREE - - 3,061 - - 3,061 17 3,178
Total comprehensive income 2AUALE - - 3,061 - 7,902 10,963 (1,848) 9,115
Total transactions with owners BEBAZARSR
Dividends paid relating to 2010 “E-TFREBEZEMARE - - - - (3,670) (3,670) - (3,670)
Balance at 31 December 2011 WZB-—-F+ZA=1-H2
43 15,228 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 271,838 (217) 271,621
Balance at 1 January 2012 WZE-Z5-A-A74% 15,228 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 271,838 217) 271,621
Comprehensive income 2EHUA
Profit/(loss) for the year REERT/ (BB) - - - - 7342 7342 (791) 6,551
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERZS - - 170 - - 170 )] 168
Total comprehensive income 2ARAEE - - 170 - 7342 7512 (793) 6,719
Total transactions with owners BEAAZBRSE
Dividends paid relating to 2011 “R—FlBZEMARE - - - - (6,940) (6,940) - (6,940)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZIB-ZF+ZR=t-H2
& 15,228 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 272,410 (1,010 271,400

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HBLFE

2012 2011
:g_:$ - __EE
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
[ihg=3 FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZ
ReERE
Cash generated from operations ¥BELZRE 31 34,663 16,179
Interest received EEERIES 1,457 741
Interest paid EFE (1,114) (1,654)
Income taxes paid B ATER (6,083) (3,989)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBEEZ
activities R F5E 28,923 11,277
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZ
IE'%/}"JE
Purchases of property, plant and ﬁ%,\%% 5= K
equipment B 7 (9,236) (10,719)
Decrease in long-term prepayment of %% = M52
property, plant and equipment RETAMRIE
kD 27 173
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEME BER
and equipment X2 TS ROE 31 769 296
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets ~ #HEFIELHE 2
held for sale FERBEEZ
PRiS FRI8 31 - 19,305
Purchases of land use rights and BELHFERRE
intangible assets mHEE 6, 8 (107) -
Increase in short-term bank deposits G ERER 7T IE SR hn (7,387) -
Increase in investment in an associate REERNF 28 E
Zn 10 (2,078) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEES (FA)/
investing activities EAXZREFHE (18,012) 9,055
Cash flows from financing activities METHEEZ
HERE
Dividends paid 2R E 26 (6,940) (3,670)
Proceeds from new short-term %ﬁ}_ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
bank borrowings Frig 5018 60,177 95,951
Repayment of short-term bank BB ERITRE
borrowings (59,717) (96,734)
Repayment of non-current bank borrowings 1E§3Eﬂﬂgﬂfiﬂ BE (5,314) (4,278)
Repayment of amount due to BEA %ﬂm%
Vedan Enterprise Corporation B ARA
(“Taiwan Vedan”) (ra “%PfJ )2
KA (2,166) (2,145)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHMAZ
We (13,960) (10,876)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRELZEEY
cash equivalents (R EmFE (3,049) 9,456
Cash and cash equivalents RENzRE R
at beginning of year ReZEEY 14 45,518 34,536
Exchange gains on cash and ReRkE2ZEEY
cash equivalents 2 B H W 5 98 1,526
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREER
at end of year HEEEY 14 42,567 45,518

The notes on pages 61 to 129 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and the principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

WABEER ZER)ERAF ([KRAF]) R
HfBAR (A AEEDEERBE
EEEBRIFNE ELLERRAER
MIRER (BREWERY BEREER.
URAE Bk FT R EERL ) AR - B DR E
o HHREAKEBER hEARHK
ME (THE]) AR 8EES EKEER
FNERMDEE BEREZAF URER
s SERCTEREER -

RAARARAEREFMERLZERA
At B E MU A - Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies °

RRARNBEBARZMABR AR L

BRETIMN BEMERRIAET ([
TTDIE ERBHRER T —=F=
A+ BREESHEEM-

RHBERFESRREBE

REMEGAVBRRFEAZEERETE
GERIBEEINMT B AR 1 F
BRCEMERRABEEZRFE -

21 REBEE
REEMGEVBREDBEES
B MEELMFEE A M IEHRE
TH AR5 JFE 52 AR AN 18 17 i 4R 2

BAUNTAB BB RELERNOT B
BEAFEERE TE2M AR
MEEBERMAAEE Z G5 HE
B INE RIELHE - P RBEH
B = e IE R - 08 KR
AMBRRELDERNBRRMEEH
RS M A R E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(E)

(@) The following amendments to standards are (@) UWTEEIARREIR=_E—=4F
mandatory for the first time for the financial year —A—BRBZHEBREFEER
beginning 1 January 2012, but have not had any BRA - 1B H ST 7R R [ 3 AR AT ]
significant financial impact to the Group. EARVBLE-

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of EE g R ERETIA -
(Amendment) Underlying Assets 125 (BFTKR)  KEEBREE
HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and ERMBHRELY BREBUBKRX
(Amendment) Removal of Fixed Dates for F15 (BFIA) S ERERE
First-time Adopters 2 EEH S
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of BENBRELN BE
(Amendment) Financial Assets FE7% (BFIA) ~BBHBEE

(b) The following new standards, interpretation and b) UTAEBEMELIIERN_-Z
amendments/revisions to standards have been ——F—A—HRRZHBF
issued, but are not effective for the financial year EEA BINVERAIRA 25
beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been early A BRERERZEITARS
adopted. (BET o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
KT RABRzE
HBEZETHBEER
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012
AAGHENE 1R (BEIAR) 2I|BBWwE —E-——F+A—H
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
ARG ERZE 195 EERF —E—=%—H—H
({ERFTA)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
BEGFERE275 BB HRE —2—=%—H—H
(#&1835T)
HKAS 28 (Revised) Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
ARG ERIZE285 BE AR REEDT —ZET—=%—H—H
(&1835])
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosure — 1 January 2014
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
ARG ERIZE325: TRTAE: BE-EHEVKEERKEE —T—WOF—HF—H
({EFTA)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First Time Adoption on Government Loans 1 January 2013
BAUBFREEAFEI5R BHIXERNEFE R —Z—=%—AF—H
(BETA)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosure — 1 January 2013

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

RV BEREEAFETHR ERMTAE: RE-HAEMBEERMBEE —FT—=F—H—H

CEHEN)

HKFRS 7 and Mandatory Effective Date and 1 January 2015
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Transition Disclosures

BB BWMEERETR K 58 Tl A= 2 B HA R B E 1 B BR —E-RE—A—H
BB B RE LR BN
(EFTAR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

N

BREER

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)  (continued)

2.1 mEE

(b)

FEEHBREE (&)

% (%)
(&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIIBMHE 2%
BMreatHBEN

HKFRS 9
BB 1S A A RO
HKFRS 10
BAM B EERE105
HKFRS 11
BAEMBREEAE1R
HKFRS 12
BN B REERE125
HKFRS 13

BAM B EERE135
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

HE (BRMERERE
ZEg) R2EF20%
Amendments to
HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12

BEMBREENE105%
EREMBMEERNE1HRR
BB REERIE 125
(BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRSs 10,
12 and HKAS 27
(Revised 2011)

BEMBREERNE105%
ERMBMEERNFE125 R
BEBGTERE275%
(RZZE——FKIEET)
(BFTA)

Annual improvements project

FREBCER 3

Financial Instruments

SRMITA

Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe P BEmk

Joint Arrangements

HREZH

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HERNEMEE  Ex

Fair Value Measurements

NFEGFGE

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

BRES EEMRBRZ HRKA

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

mAEMBHRE XRTEER
HEERN H Ath F 58 2 - iRIE IR 5

Investment Entities

5
i
il
i

Improvements to HKASs and HKFRSs
2009 - 2011

“ETNFE-F—FEAGHEAR
BB EER ML

1 January 2015
e T i =
1 January 2013

—E-=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—E-=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—E-=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—E-=F—H—H

1 January 2013

—Z—=%—H—H

1 January 2013

1 January 2014

—E—MmFE—H—H

1 January 2013

—ZE—=%—HF—H

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above new
standards, amendments/revision to standards and
interpretation. Except for HKFRS 10 which the
management has assessed there is no significant
impact, the Group is not yet in a position to
state whether substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies and financial statements
presentation will result.

REE T AT fE R L
BRI R 2 EBFTAR TR
BBz E -RAKBEEF A
EEMBREEREI0HRL
RABZEANL T EBREKRF
B AEBHKRGEEEEES
SARE 2GR ER R HR
RZ2VNAABBERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MEBAF

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights (“control”).
The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated. The
financial information of subsidiaries has been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

64  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (258) AR A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the aggregate of the
consideration and any non-controlling interest
is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

2

RHEERFERRFEE (])

22 MEAR (&)
22146 (#)

(a)

E RNt
AEBERBKBETE
XA -WBEHER
AMBEKERSMEE
BE - WWEBTHNESR
EMELREBERAKE
PR TR AR A F
BRE FEEREES
BIARELHELEN
EREEXRENRF
B-NEHEHEMK
BB ey ] BRI & B N AT A
EWRBERIRERE:
MEREBEANRFE
B AKERERK
BEEURTELIEE
i #E 25 42 L 1) A 8 W
BOABERNEEFRED
RS H BREWE
J7 FRIR A e o

HENSHCERRE
RIEERES AT ER
RE B T BT UK BB AT 3 B B
EREMAEaEY
HEAE-MBEBARE
XA G g
BERMKEBHER A
BEEFEZ2AYEF
EBRNBEPER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), joint
venture or financial asset (Note 2.10). In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors collectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) —
net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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e M HRRM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Trademarks, brand name and licence

Separately acquired trademarks, brand name and
licence, which have finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks,
brand name and licence over their estimated useful
lives of 6 to 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 B EE
2.10.1 748

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts that
are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash equivalents
(Note 2.13), amount due from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, loan to a subsidiary and
amounts due from subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBEERTESHBREE(48)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 BM%EE (§)
2103 i+ M T A

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheetwhen there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 M EE (#)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Spare parts and consumables are included within
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted
average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax

(b)

0]

(if)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally
held in independently administered funds. The
Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18

2.19

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTESHBRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 BRKWERHE AU A

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b)  Sales of surplus electricity
Sales of surplus electricity are recognised based on
units of electricity sold as recorded by meters during
the year.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(d)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and Company’'s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2012, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2011: profit) for the year
would have been US$1,217,000 (2011:
UsS$685,000) lower/higher (2011: lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of Vietnam Dong-
denominated trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables.

84 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 BB (25%) AR A F

3

MERRER

3.1

Bt %5 J B R 32
REEZEBAZERYBRER : ™
SRk (BRELRAR RERER
RFEFERR) FERRRTE
BoRE  ANEBZERERRE IR
B &P RIS 2 R TR K
SEBHEAREB W B HRER 2BE
THgERE&K-

[ Fe 7 B2 eh P R B BRER (5% I BA
M ZEESRBNBRET EE
MRS HEEEVERAF
A RFETBRR - EEEHE
BEREREENRA LERERE
FEMWBE - Pl HMNE R - & &
2 FERARRESKRDESHER
& o

(a) WHEERE
(i) SMERER

FEBREREER
% B AR EER T
R & E £ 2 SNER,
B TERBBEEYX
T2 B e SN EE R B 2R
BHEINEB ZRRARE
R BHEREENE
BEMRE SR NEE
I AR A HHME Bl B # 17
o

RZE—=—F+=A
“t—B - WEEER
ELEE/FHES% M
EEMEHEETE
REEBRBERER (=
T——F SER) R
M ——4:
B Hn) 1,217,000
En (=2 ——%F:
685,000 L) + £ E 2K
BB BmETE
fEUS & 5 R AR M A
WHE - RekBE&E
BEMRENESERK
HihEMRBEBRMELZ
HNEE S 1B UR 3 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates
on borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit (2011: profit) for
the year would have been US$92,000 (2011:
US$138,000) lower/higher (2011: lower/
higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from the
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 14 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 14) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM R

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

3 HMERRTHE(R)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BERBEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s THRBIREEBESHE A
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based THERSAEERARAZHBE
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the B /AR EARIETOIT - R&
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the BABRBE B RENATHERE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. ME e
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—-Fr —FEMFE WEELE BARE At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TR TER FTEx FTET T
Group r&EE
At 31 December 2012 HRZT—ZF
+ZA=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note)  $R7TfE & (HisE) 24,157 268 10,489 - 34,914
Trade payables ERNE SRR 23,113 - - - 23,113
Other payables H e 508 15,732 - - - 15,732
Amount due to ENEBEALHE
a related party 323 - - - 323
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
+=A=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note)  $R{THE & (HisE) 24,046 494 16,264 - 40,804
Trade payables ERNE SRR 23,817 - - - 23,817
Other payables H A fE (3 58 12,846 - - - 12,846
Amount due to a ENEBEALHE
related party 2,399 - - - 2,399
Company N
At 31 December 2012 RZ-ZF——F
+-A=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note)  $RYTHE & (HisE) 4,127 - - - 4,127
Amount due to a ENEBEALHE
related party 323 - - - 323
At 31 December 2011  R-ZT——%&
+ZA=+—8
Bank borrowings (Note) ~ $R{THE & (HisE) 6,039 - - - 6,039
Amount due to a ENEBEALHE
related party 2,399 - - - 2,399
Note: b

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings up to
their respective maturities.

FHARBERES IS ARRTEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
equity holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2011, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

MERBRER (&)

3.2

EXEmER
AEBEERESZBRRREARE
BB IARBEERKEE 2N
RABRRGERORRBREFEA®
TR ARGRAE BEARGEIA
B BARA

RTHRFNABRELGERE AREA
RN TRRZBESHE Mk

BEEA BOIFBRNHAEEEE
VAR, BE (R 75 o

HENHEMAR] - AEEREE
BELEREERER L HIRER
BEERBERARZBRITEER
AR B AR E - EEE R

FRBEERRBEE-

RIE——F AEEZREE_ZT
——FHRMNEBER R A
EABELERFEKFE - RZTE—=
FR_FE——F+_A=+—8Z

EEBGBLEENT:
Group
rEH
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 18) BIRTTEE (MFE18) 33,219 38,073
Owners’ equity (including MmBEAZ R
non-controlling interest in equity) (BEIAERZ
FEVE RS ) 271,400 271,621
Total capital B 304,619 309,694
Gearing ratio BEABHE 1% 12%

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable.
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e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair value of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and non-
indefinite life intangible assets (Note 8) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

3

MEREER (&)

3.3 AFEME
ERFEWCE 5 8RR E b YRR
LA Ko A B 5 R 5K N LA JE A5 ROR
BREEMNE  AEBEREEREER
MERHR AN FERS - SIREM
BEXMBEERBBEZRFE TR
AEBRBA DT AREHNTS T
ERBRARKADREMEM AT

EEgs st RAE

ET R A B e TENRRE L &5 MR
RETHE BRESBATHERARE
Z AR EIHIER -

AEBEHARRIEH G REE-REE
EE BESHZEMEAEE D EARH
BEREEER - TXHAwBRRKRARET
—MBRFEFERNEERABZREEENE
k- PAR DT

(a) BEMNMGITRE
AEBESFHRBME28MANE
ARENRE  AABRERE HER
B MRRR e BT IREESER
ARREREENE AEBRRTH
ZEHMEE (MFE8) -

(b) W% BERRENEREEHER
AR E
S8 B IR BN A LK B R
B AARBEHNE BERR
B (M) MEREFHELEE
(B sE8) fE H R T £ -

)5 < BRES AR 2 T Ml R R
G PR &1 8 AT BT » A B2 3t
55 P E R I 2 T A
AEZBBARERERAGE -
BB E RO A B R 2R 5
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 ETZeAHRAE (&)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) V¥ BERZENEREFHER
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets EENMGEREE (&)
(continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations AU EEREEZ FEREMNT
are as follows.

Vietnam The PRC
HE FE
2012 2011 2012 2011

Selling price growth rate E/ERE 30% 4% - 44% 0% - 17.4% 3% - 10%
Discount rate BR=E 11.5% 11.5% 12.5% 12.5%
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of DITEE D BARERIIR S B
each CGU within the operating segment. EERAFARE-

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and () V¥ BERRENEFEENER
intangible assets FH
The Group's management determines the estimated AEENERE2ERAEEEER
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation A 7% 55 & B BUS R PR A Bl 25 B £
charges for its property, plant and equipment and ST BEEHEYE  RE REEMN
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods mILEEMMGFT A EREHRIEHE
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits e REHEF - BT Ty AU
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based ME RINGEN Y - BB KR AR
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of FEENERETRAFHNELLR
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of BELE BT AFHEBA G
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust Bl EEEKARTERBHEASL -
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful ERQEFHAI AR ERAE
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives BB PR - 5F B B T sE B B Al (i
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review REE kBRI E K HEA
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore X IR EE) -
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's policies and information for the purposes of assessing
performance and allocating resources.

The Group presents its operating segment results (below) based
on the information reviewed by the chief operating decision-
makers and used to make strategic decisions. This information
includes segment revenue, segment assets and capital
expenditures.

The chief operating decision-makers consider the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

The chief operating decision makers mainly assess the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$59,092,000 (2011:
US$55,763,000) is derived from a single external customer. This
revenue is attributable to the Japan segment.

a4

EEFgsEstRAE (1)

(d) ENFREHRREERSEHR
AEERGHTE  BERAENM
B - HNEEMSHRAREN S
B AREAELRERHE -FZR
S RETEDHAREE T RO
%o REBEAMT ARG DEMERIN
BB {MERHAARBERERE
ZEE - WMEZEEEZHRERBER
HEVARZEBIR  ZEEZHH
TENBEEHAZE M LELRR
BHEENAE-

i i 22 B AR A R SR FE ER TR & N R
EHHEREZRERRBEBRA T
PR emREE TEREE
REMZELHMEREERHAE
18 - WA RER 55 2 [HEH A
FHZReHARGTLERES 2
HRABEEHRBEERMSHRAX
ZHERBRTZE-

SEHRH
TEEERRECHETREBESTEN
B-BERHHAEEZIMKRRER LA
BRARDEEIR -

AEERBE TN EIBEEERREMBHMAL
RRBIERERE 2ER 22BN RIE
BoMEEHRBEOBRE DHMEER
BAX -

TERERAE LB EE D THER -
NEESBR2BAME  SBREUES
B 815 - 5 Eh A B R A AN it X
EEFEES -

EEREANE T EREENID S BHE
T WHTEE G Fl S BERER
R AR -

#959,092,000% 0 (=T — — & :
55,763,000% L) 2 W JhE A B 8B — 4
R mtERESEIRE B AR
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEH(E)
(a) Segment revenue (a) DUz

2012 2011

US$'000 US$'000

TEx F=ET

Vietnam fidEa) 173,347 180,624

The PRC th 40,282 46,779

Japan =] 79,955 86,039

Taiwan = 11,862 6,909
ASEAN member countries WK E

(other than Vietnam) (T EEEM) 50,512 36,310

Other regions H fib b [ 16,964 26,239

372,922 382,900

(b) Capital expenditures (b) EBXZH

2012 2011

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam A 6,783 8,961

The PRC s 2,560 1,758

9,343 10,719

Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on
where the assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment and land use rights and intangible assets.

BRI TR E EM AT 2 AL
EED

7]
[=]

o

EAXHBRAEME BE MR
B LERERELEE-

(c) Total assets (c) #HWEE
2012 2011
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Vietnam =] 287,876 287,765
The PRC A 57,082 69,548
Hong Kong BE 8,308 3,133
Taiwan =¥ 401 859
Singapore nig 62 62
353,729 361,367

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where
the assets are located.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHE)

() Total assets (continued) (c) #HMEE (#)
Property, plant and equipments are monitored by the ME BEMRZEREEENREED
E=3 ¥

management at the operating segment level. The HEHER-UTAIREREEE
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation DERERBEE (716 7Kk8)
and impairment of non-current assets (Notes 6, 7 and 8) HTERRERE-
allocation for each operating segment.
Amortisation
and
depreciation Impairment
B RITE AR
Us$°000 Us$’000
FER FTER
2012 —E—C—fF
Vietnam i E 21,815 666
The PRC i 2,974 -
24,789 666
Amortisation
and
depreciation Impairment
BiERTE A
US$'000 US$'000
FET FET
2011 —T——%F
Vietnam L 22,171 250
The PRC H 2,976 4,005
25,147 4,255
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

+ ith 5 A 4
AEERLERBEIEREEEROZ
BEER HEREFEITET:

2012 2011
Us$°000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Outside Hong Kong, held on Leases of EBBUINGE
between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZEL 2,205 2,200
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTErx FET
At 1 January w—HR—H 2,200 654
Exchange differences ME W Z=5 5 36
Additions RE 51 -
Amortisation of land use rights - b {5 R
(Notes 5 and 22) (M¥sE5522) (51) (64)
Transfer from non-current assets held ERERHELE
for sale (Note ii) FEmEEE (M) - 1,574
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—H~ 2,205 2,200
Notes: M5
(i) In respect of the Group's land use rights, Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) (i) REAEB 2 T ERAEMS NP BEX

Co. Ltd ("Xiamen Maotai”), Shandong Vedan Snowflake
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have been
granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority for 50
years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively.

(i) In September 2010, Shanghai Vedan entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for sales of certain land use
rights and property, plant and equipment (the “Agreement”). At
31 December 2010, the related assets had been reclassified as
non-current assets held for sale.

In August 2011, a supplementary agreement to the Agreement
was entered into by both parties to agree that a piece of land
with carrying value of US$1,574,000 would be retained by
Shanghai Vedan and accordingly this land was transferred back to
land use rights in 2011.
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Office
equipment
Construction- Plant and Motor and other
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  fixed assets Total
BAERER
ERIR nE  BERES RE HttEEEE At
USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000 USD'000
T TEn TEn RE RE RE
At 1 January 2011 R-E-—-%-f—-H
Cost % 6,698 102,547 402,442 8,849 31,523 552,059
Accumulated depreciation 2 E - (50,608) (284,754) (7,113) (27,929) (370,404)
Accumulated impairment &t - (1,562) (6,058) - (22) (7,642)
Net book amount REFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z—-F
+ZA=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount FORAFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
Exchange differences ERESE - 168 931 9 - 1,108
Additions NE 8,854 28 1,183 370 284 10,719
Transfer BE (10,430) 3,034 7,335 - 61 -
Disposals HE - (1) (381) (14) (46) (442)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 22) & (MsR22) - (5,000) (17,232) (500) (864) (23,59)
Impairment loss (Notes 4, 5 and 22) BEEE (Hi4 5K22) - (1,166) (3,089) - - (4,255)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
At 31 December 2011 R-ZEB-—%+Zh=1+-H
Cost AR 5,122 104,144 405,331 8,687 31,378 554,662
Accumulated depreciation 2 E - (53,976) (295,807) (7,086) (28,349) (385,218)
Accumulated impairment ZEtitE - (2,728) (9,147) - (22) (11,897)
Net book amount REFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z--f
+-A=t-HBLEFE
Opening net book amount FYRAFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
Exchange differences EREHE 4 14 26 - 1 45
Additions NE 7,391 140 642 708 355 9,236
Transfer EE (5,571) 1,495 4,058 - 18 -
Disposals HeE - (369) (297) (33) 2) (701)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 22) & (MaEsR2) - (5,121) (16,827) (414) 917) (23,279)
Transfer to non-current assets held ERERELEFRDEE
for sale (Note i) (B zEi) - (650) (1,246) - (4) (1,900)
Impairment loss (Notes ii, 4, 5and 22)  RIEEE (M &ii-4 - 5Kk22) - (260) (59) 2 (1) (322)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
At 31 December 2012 R=EB--%+=B=1+-H
Cost AR 6,946 104,169 405,672 8,601 31,633 557,021
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE - (58,852) (309,851) (6,741) (29,154) (404,598)
Accumulated impairment ZEAE - (2,628) (9,147) - (22) (11,797)
Net book amount EHEE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626

Annual Report 2012 £ 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group are
pledged as security for the Group’s current and non-current
bank borrowings as follows:

ME-BERRM (&)
AEENETFOE BERBEELR
VABRS 75 55 [E ) B HA Ko JE BN HR AR 1T {8 B 40
T

2012 2011
Us$°000 Us$'000
SRED FET
Net book amount of pledged property, EEAYE BERZE
plant and equipment (Note 35) BREF(E (MFE35) 19,157 21,104

Depreciation expense of US$16,392,000 (2011: US$19,485,000)
has been charged in cost of sales, US$349,000 (2011:
US$46,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$6,538,000 (2011: US$4,065,000) in administrative expenses.

Note:

(i) On 19 November 2012, Veyu Enterprise Co. Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation
Limited (“Vietnam Vedan”), entered into an agreement with
an independent third party, to dispose of its property, plant
and equipment located in Gia Lai Province in Vietnam for VND
60,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$2,883,000). The net gain of
the disposal is estimated to be approximately US$983,000 and
this transaction is expected to be completed by April 2013. The
relevant property, plant and equipment have been presented as
non-current assets held for sale as at 31 December 2012.

(i) The impairment loss charged to certain property, plant and
equipment were subsequently sold during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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BYLE=ZFFTLHE NEEMLR B
ERREZUE BERRE REA
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 mEEE
Group Company
33 NG|
Software
Goodwill  and licence Brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE EBHERER i heE 1 A&t BE

(US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000) (Us$'000)
(TX=71) (F=71) (T=71) (F=71) (F=71) (TX71)

At 1 January 2011 R=B--%-A-H
Cost A 8,547 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,420 12,089
Accumulated amortisation g (158) (591) (570) (7,052) (8,371) (7,052)
Net book amount BREFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z——F

+ZA=t-RHLEEE
Opening net book amount FNRAFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Exchange differences EREHE 391 - - - 391 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 22)  SHEIS (HIE5M22) - (164) (114) (1,209) (1,487) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
At 31 December 2011 RZB--f+tZA=t+-H
Cost AR 8,938 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,811 12,089
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (158) (755) (684) (8,261) (9,858) (8,261)
Net book amount REFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
Year ended 31 December 2012 B2-Z--F

+ZA=+t-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYRAFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
Exchange differences ERZE 20 - - - 20 -
Additions NE - 56 - - 56 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 22)  #3HEI (HIE5%22) - (136) (114) (1,209) (1,459) (1,209)
Impairment loss (Notes 5 and 22) AERR (H5K22) - - (344) - (344) -
Closing net book amount FREAFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z#+=ZA=t+-H
Cost KA 8,958 1,698 1,142 12,089 23,887 12,089
Accumulated amortisation g 3 (158) (891) (798) (9,470) (11,317) (9,470)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - - (344) - (344) -
Net book amount REFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B P AITBR XL
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 8 ®|iEWE(H)
Impairment tests for goodwill: BERENR:
Goodwill is attributed to the Group's CGUs according to REBERELED D EHAHR 2 HRIUR
operating segment. CEURBREE-
The PRC Vietnam
H e
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
KSR & Tk 5 B % At
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FE7T FET FET
At 31 December 2012 RZB——F+-_A=+—H 8,070 730 8,800
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+=A=+—H 8,050 730 8,780

OB BNz RO eRNIZERER
HE-REHEENEREEMEZAFY
BEEERGRBAIRS REEAET B

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as
follows.

HE 2 B R AT 2502 43
BEREE (ER) - BETEERER
R BB IR RN R BT
E%-

AN EEREEZ EEMREDT -

Gross margin EF =&
Growth rate 1# 5 &
Discount rate PR =

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the recoverable amounts to
below the carrying amounts.
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mEMBHRRME
9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9 PHEAFIZERE ®KF—HEEL
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FIZRBEFREKMEATRIE —
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY b /N
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RKMBRAAZERE
2012 2011
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FETT
Unlisted shares e ET G 166,030 165,241

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2012:

Place of
incorporation/

THAR—ZE—=—F+=_A=1+—

Shrdss- 3 ) PNCIE

Particulars of

%

establishment and issued/paid up interest
kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name HMEYL,/ R E  place of operation BRT/HE BERER
A% UREEREER TEXBREELY RAFE %
Directly held:
BERE -
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
("BVI") EERREER of US$1 each
RERAES 100 BREE
IETHEBR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
EBRIEE EERRERR of US$1 each
100 FREE
[E:0k-3513
Indirectly held:
FEHE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore  US$61,109,000 100%
I TEs Myt % A1 Ordinary shares
61,109,000
EnEBER
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore ~ US$20,177,000 100%
DI TEFT k5 & 1 IR Ordinary shares

20,177,000
XTLEBR
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9 PHBLRZRE BT —HMEBL
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FIZEHERREKRMEATRIE -
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) F2F ()

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) RKMBAAZEKRE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of %
establishment and issued/paid up interest
kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name HMEI,/ MutE  place of operation BRT/HE BEER
£ UREEERER TEXRREELY BRAFE %

Indiirectly held: (continued)
HERE (&)

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of 131,970,000 100%
Corporation Limited i fermentation-based food Ordinary shares of
AT (M) R BERAT additives and biochemical US$1 each
products and cassava starch- 131,970,0008%
based industrial products SREMEIET

including MSG, GA, modified GOR=F il

starch, glucose syrup, soda and

acid in Vietnam and for export
EHMEHEEREEEERMAM

B EtERRAZRHIEE

me BERE AR

FURY BEREE R

KR SHE H A
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sales of MSG in 1,838,282 100%
e Vietnam Ordinary shares of
EHEBRRHEERE US$1 each
1,838,282/%
BREBIET
H & AR
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited Manufacture and sale of Us$17,200,000 70%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. liability company MSG in the PRC Registered capital
IWREASEEEERAA hE BRAF EREEERHEERE 17,200,000% 70
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

FHEBEARZRE BF—HMWEL

FzRBRREERHEQTRE -
F2F ()
(a) RMEBELIRZRE (&)
Particulars of %
issued/paid up interest

kind of legal entity  Principal activities and share capital held
Name HMEL,/ Myt place of operation BRT/HRE BERER
A% R EREER IEFBREELE RAFE %
Indiirectly held: (continued)
HERE (&)
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise PRC, limited Packaging and sale of US$9,800,000 100%

Co. Ltd. liability company MSG in the PRC Registered capital
TERACEERAF hE BRAT ETEBERHEERE 9,800,000% 7T
AMER

Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd. Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava 2,300,000 100%

e starch-based industrial products Ordinary shares of

in Vietnam and for export US$1 each

AHEREREERZRIHTE 2,300,000

EmIHEELO BREEIZET
VEBR
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC, limited Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Export Trade Co., Ltd. liability company industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EMARELEOESERRR  HE FRAF EREEERERN IEEM 254,000% T
AMER

Long-term loan to a subsidiary and amounts due
from subsidiaries

At 31 December 2011, the long-term loan granted to a
subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free, denominated in
US$ and repayable on 31 July 2013. The carrying value
of loan to a subsidiary approximates its fair value. The
balance is included in amounts due from subsidiaries as at
31 December 2012.

(b)

LT -HENBATRZRHBERERE
W B B A R R E
R_E——F+_A=+—H %7
—HMBARZ RPERAERM -
BB UETLHE WER-_ZT—=
FrA=Z+—BHEE-HFHH
BARERZEFABEREERZ AT
BRE RZE——F+=-A=+—
B &R0 ABKHK B QAR
18 o
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long-term loan to a subsidiary and amounts due
from subsidiaries (continued)
At 31 December 2012, amounts due from subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free, denominated in US$ and
repayable on demand, except the following:

(i)  Short-term US$ denominated loan of US$6,200,000
to a subsidiary was unsecured and repayable on
31 July 2013, and carried an interest at three-
month SIBOR plus 1.5% (2011: unsecured, interest-
free, denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 July
2013).

(i) Short-term US$ denominated loan of US$5,804,000
to a subsidiary was unsecured and repayable on
31 December 2013, and carried an interest at
three-month SIBOR plus 3.25% (2011: unsecured,
denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 December
2012, and carried an interest at three-month SIBOR
plus 3.25%).
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PREAFRZEE KBTF—HHBEL
FIZRHERREWRHEATRE -
ENF (1)
HF-—BMEBELAAZREBERRE
WK BATRE (E)
RZE—=—F+ZA=+—8 KK
MEBARRIEAEER 28 UE
TLRHE S WAREREE KT lE

(b)

BRON:

(i)

(ii)

¥y —MBWBE QA Z
6,200,000E L2 HIZZ T E 3K
BERE BN T -=F+t
A=+—HEE® YR =[A
N3 8R4 R E 4 B2 0152
E(ZZ——F EEH &
B UETHE TERZE
—=ZF+tA=+—HBEE)-

“F—BWEBE QA
5,804,0003 JT 52 HiZE T B K
AERKE - AN_ZT—=

+—A=+—HEE TiE=
8 A %7 hn 4 88 77 [F 2 97 8.0
325 B (B ——4fF &
R - UETFHE ERZZ
——F+-_A=+—H{EE"
W I% = 1@ B #1 i iR 1T R 247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEHRRNE
10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND 10 R—HBREATRZCERE-EEERSF
COMPANY g |
2012 2011
uUs$’000 Us$'o00
FErx FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR (RACA) 3,308 1,230
Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows: R—HEERRZRESLH AT :
Group Company
KEE b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
UsS$'000 Us$'000 us$’000 Us$'000
SFEET FET FEETE FET
At 1 January n—A—H 1,008 1,230 1,230 1,230
Additions NE 2,078 - 2,078 -
Share of post-tax loss of fEE— B Z QT
an associate MrAi1& 18 (44) (222) = -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8”H 3,042 1,008 3,308 1,230
The Group's share of the results of the associate and its assets REEEROHBENT ZEBEURAEER
and liabilities are as follows: BEMT:
Country of Particulars of %
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held
g MR LER ERITRAFERE EEEZE%
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30
Holdings Limited FEHS US$1 each
EMBIBRZERBRAA 4,100,0008%

FREEIET B
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10

11

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND 10
COMPANY (continued)

Summary of financial information on associate — effective
interest

R—HEBELAFZRE-*KEREX
47 (1))
BELNRZHBERNBE -BRES

Share of
Assets Liabilities Revenue loss
BE =i W 2 FEihEE
Us$'000 Us$'000 uUs$'o000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE-ZF
+=—B=+—-8 3,044 (2) - (44)
At 31 December 2011 RZF——F
+—-—A=+—H 1,008 - - (222)

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2012, the associate has not
started any development project.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11
GROUP AND COMPANY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
applied to the line items below:

BEATNBEEERFRNERR B
E_E-—F+-A=+—0 HEAF
MR B A BRI R -

BRENBSZEMIA-FEEARF
N
ERUTREEAEH:M T E 25K
&

2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Group rEE
Loans and receivables BRI R IE
Long-term loan and receivables REAER R EWRFIA 134 329
Trade receivables BUE 5 EER 41,703 32,714
Amount due from non-controlling JE U BT /&8 1~ B FEHE AR
interest of a subsidiary a2 F8 1,405 1,431
Other receivables Hh fE R IE 4,959 7,180
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITER 7,387 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 42,567 45,518
98,155 87,172
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mEMBRERME
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 BRENESZEMIA-ZFXEERSF
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) NE (48)
2012 2011
uUs$‘000 Us$'o00
FXE7x FET
Group rEH
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHENAHECVBER
Trade payables FERTE SRR 23,113 23,817
Other payables H A FE A 5RIR 15,061 12,374
Amount due to a related party JER B REEA LA 323 2,399
Bank borrowings RITEE 33,219 38,073
71,716 76,663
2012 2011
Us$‘000 Us$'000
Fx5t FET
Company b /N
Loans and receivables BRI B U IE
Long-term loan to a subsidiary M EARRERAER - 13,200
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U [ BB A R FUA 56,788 50,146
Other receivables H R IE 16 19
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 2,005 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 1,560 723
60,369 64,088
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTERx FET
Company b /N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBEEKASEZMERE
Other payables Hh FE A 5RR 1,002 1,580
Amount due to a related party FERT B RAE A T RIE 323 2,399
Bank borrowings RITERE 4,030 5,850
5,355 9,829
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mEMBRERME
12 INVENTORIES 12 &8
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Spare parts and consumables T KB m 3,742 3,500
Raw materials B Mk 45,192 47,177
Work in progress E& 10,953 6,423
Finished goods BUAK G 31,209 38,238
91,096 95,338
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BREHAIRFAFHER RN ZFEK
in cost of sales amounted to US$271,912,000 (2011: AR A271,912,000 (=T ——F:
US$289,757,000). 289,757,000% L) °
13 TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 BERBER
The fair values of trade receivables are as follows: EWEZEFR 2 AFEDT:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=FZEHER 43,207 33,987
Trade receivables from a related party FEREBEBEALTEZHER
(Note 34(d)) (PH3E34(d)) 105 110
Less: provision for impairment of B ERE SR
trade receivables B B (1,609) (1,383)
41,703 32,714
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EWE SRR EEHBEINRE
delivery to 60 days and the ageing of the trade receivables R MENE ZREFIEEZRRAZRER S
based on invoice date is as follows: T
Group
rEEH
2012 2011
Us$‘000 Us$'000
Fxt FET
0 - 30 days 0E30K 36,841 21,400
31 - 90 days 31E90K 2,891 7,395
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 1,808 2,444
181 — 365 days 181E365K 36 1,224
Over 365 days 365K A & 1,736 1,634
43,312 34,097
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of US$30,067,000
(2011: US$27,025,000) were fully performing.

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of US$11,336,000
(2011: US$5,685,000) were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based
on past experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered.
The ageing of those past due but not impaired receivables is as
follows:

13 BB ZIER(E)

W—Z—=%#+=-_A=Z+—8"
30,067,000% 7T ( ZZF——4F : 27,025,000
EN)RKESEREZHBERI -

WZZE2—-—ZF+Z-A=+—80"
11,336,000 7T ( —Z & ——4 : 5,685,000
ERIZEKNESEZRCHHELREE
BE - BEFRIEREE T ES KNI E E#
ZEBNERFAR BREBALE B
FRIA A B UL - 3% F B HAB X K ORME 2 B
WHIB 2 R DT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
Us$°000 US$'000
FER FET

Overdue by 461 5

0 - 90 days 0ZE90K 9,668 3,942
91 — 180 days 91E180K 1,664 1,681
Over 180 days 180K £ 4 62
11,336 5,685

As of 31 December 2012, trade receivables of US$1,909,000
(2011: US$1,387,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was US$1,609,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011:
US$1,383,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to prior customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult
economic situations. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

R—_B——F+_-_A=+—H EKE
SR 31,909,000FX L (=& — — F:
1,387,000 L) E P RE-R=2FT—=
F+ZA=1+—HELNBESLEAR
1,609,000% T (=& —— 4 : 1,383,000
) - ERIBREMNERFEEZHER
AT ECERSENNEL,ER Mo
FEWGRIBRIFH A ATEERAE T ULE - % S e
WHRIER R T T

Group

rEH
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET

Overdue by i1 HA

0 - 90 days 0£90K 158 -
91 - 180 days 91E180K - -
181 — 365 days 1812365k - -
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,751 1,387
1,909 1,387
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 BEEHER (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are REEZEWE ZERRABER T EE
denominated in the following currencies: FEEE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam Dong MR A 16,586 20,363
us$ ETT 21,984 10,312
Renminbi AR® 3,133 2,039
41,703 32,714
Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade REEZ EWESHEFREREZBED
receivables are as follows: W
Group
rEEH
2012 2011
Us$‘000 UsS$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January w—HA—H 1,383 1,522
Provision for receivables impairment JE W R TR R
(Note 22) (HsE22) 229 -
Unused amounts reversed (Note 22) EEEARASE (MiE22) (3) (139)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,609 1,383
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables e R R RS I BUBR R E BB E 5T AR S
have been included in administrative expenses in the Was ZH (1T Z P (FEFE22) o R
consolidated income statement (Note 22). Amounts charged to BRGNS — RN TRHEEWEIFEIN
the allowance account are generally written off when there is IR & RN -

no expectation of recovering additional cash.
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14 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 14
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances totalling US$13,086,000 (2011: US$27,711,000)
and US$32,628,000 (2011: US$17,067,000) as at 31
December 2012 were mainly placed with major state-owned
financial institutions in the PRC and Vietnam, respectively.
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam
is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and
Vietnamese governments.

EHMBRTEFRRBAERIASERD

RZE——F+_A=+—H R4
44 £13,086,000 0 (=ZF ——F:
27,711,000% 7t ) %32,628,000% 7T ( =
T ——4:17,067,0005% 7T) D BliE A
EREENTERBNEHE - ZEES
B R B R B B T P B I R BT A
HNEE B il $5 e

Group Company
rEE KAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FTEx FET FEx FET
Short-term bank deposits REEE AHA
with original maturity ={EAZREERT
over three months TR 7,387 - 2,005 -
Cash at bank and on hand  $RITREFRE 42,567 45,518 1,560 723
49,954 45,518 3,565 723

The Group’s short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBEEHRTEIARRERREEEY
BIATEMEHE:

Group Company
G5 3 NS

2012 2011 2012 2011
US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
TER FET FEx FET
Vietnam Dong B E 22,531 6,077 = -
us$ e 11,947 11,574 1,175 550
Renminbi AR 15,113 27,694 2,027 -
Hong Kong dollar BT 89 85 89 85
New Taiwan dollar et 274 88 274 88
49,954 45,518 3,565 723

Annual Report 2012 3 109




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

14 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end
of the reporting period were as follows. There was no short-
term bank deposit held by the Group in 2011.

14 EHMBETHERRAGRASERY

(#)

RS R - AR B R IR G
ToARER-T——FLEHE TR
TR

Group Company
rEH AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
Short-term bank deposits REHAR AHEB=EA
with original maturity ZREHARITIE R
over three months 7.8% - 2.8% -
15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 B
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBR
Par value Number of
uss shares Us$’000
HEER K% & B FEx
At 31 December 2012 and RZ-T——4F
31 December 2011 +ZA=+—HK
—E——F+=-A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRAZEER
Par value Number of
uss$ shares us$'000
HEXT BB E Fxx
At 31 December 2012 and RZ-T— 4%
31 December 2011 +ZA=F+—HK
—E——%+=-A=1+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES 16 W
(a) Group (a) #A£HE
Merger
reserve
Share Exchange (Note) Retained
premium reserve GHRE earnings Total
12 E ERHE (Hf&E) REEF &t

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T T T TEL TEL

At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 249,317
Profit for the year AEE 5T - - - 7,902 7,902
Dividends paid BIRMAR S - - - (3,670) (3,670)
Exchange translation X EE

differences - 3,061 - - 3,061
At 31 December 2011 RZZT——F+=A=+—H 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 256,610
Representing: A :

2011 Final dividend RRENZZE——F

proposed RER S 4,740

Others Hit 109,250

Retained earnings asat RW-_ZT——&+-HA=+—H

31 December 2011 ZIREBF 113,990
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—HF—H 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 256,610
Profit for the year RELER - - - 7,342 7,342
Dividends paid BEIRMAR S - - - (6,940) (6,940)
Exchange translation BN EE

differences - 170 - - 170
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 257,182
Representing: Bl

2012 Final dividend BBz -T—=%

proposed KRR S 2,205

Others Hip 112,187

Retained earnings as at RZZE——F+-A=+—HZ

31 December 2012 RERT 114,392
Note: B &
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEENEHHBEEIRER=_ZT=F
between the nominal value of the share capital and share T AT ANBERMEBEMAEMKE
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group WEARMNRAEERRMDEERERRD
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal AT SRMBIT 2 RAEMENERE
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.
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16 RESERVES (continued) 16 fiEfl (#)
(b) Company (b) A2
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R0 5 8 B 5 6 REBR &
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FE7 FEr FTET FTEX
At 1 January 2011 N_T——F—H—H 194,098 50 16,554 210,702
Profit for the year REEEH - - 4,205 4,205
Dividends paid BIR AR S - - (3,670) (3,670)

At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=A

=+—H 194,098 50 17,089 211,237
Representing: Bp:
2011 Final dividend BRRNZ_F——F
proposed REARR S 4,740

Others Hitb 12,349

Retained earnings asat WZZE——F+=A

31 December 2011 =T—BZRERF 17,089
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 194,098 50 17,089 211,237
Profit for the year KA H - - 8,634 8,634
Dividends paid ERAE B - - (6,940) (6,940)
Exchange translation PE N ERE

difference - 38 - 38

At 31 December 2012 RZZE——%+—-A

=+—H 194,098 88 18,783 212,969
Representing: B
2012 Final dividend BERNZ-E—_F
proposed REARR B 2,205

Others Hith 16,578

Retained earnings asat WMZZE——F+=A

31 December 2012 =T+—BZRERF 18,783
Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law BRERERERAE(ZTET=F
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the 18ETHR) B34 M AR AR A E T2 40
Company, the share premium of the Company is available Al ARARWRMDBREN DK TR
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency ROMEARAQRIEBBEGNABLFTES
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of RRAFIEBERMAAEE

Association of the Company.
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RE M EmERME
17 TRADE PAYABLES 17 BB ZER
At 31 December 2012, the ageing of trade payables based on RZE——ZF+ZA=+—H ENES
invoice date is as follows: EREEZEAHCRROTHT
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
0 — 30 days 0230K 18,978 21,504
31 - 90 days 31E90K 3,921 2,259
91 — 180 days 912180k 170 33
181 — 365 days 1812365k 3 5
Over 365 days 365K A E 41 16
23,113 23,817
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are AEEZENESEFREABEETIEE
denominated in the following currencies: FRER
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Vietnam Dong M A 10,946 10,312
us$ ETT 11,834 12,875
Renminbi AR 333 630
23,113 23,817
18 BANK BORROWINGS 18 RITHESE
Group Company
rEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=T FxEx FET
Non-current FEENHA
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— secured (Notes 33 and 35) — A&
(HMf#E33%35) 9,946 15,260 - -
Current portion of non- JERNERERITIEE 2
current bank borrowings BN EAER 10
- secured —BEHR (4,679) (5,314) = -
5,267 9,946 - -
Current BN HA
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (Notes 33 and 35) — A&
(Mf#E33%35) 19,243 16,963 - -
— unsecured — 4,030 5,850 4,030 5,850
23,273 22,813 4,030 5,850
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group’'s non-current bank
borrowings were repayable as follows:

18 SRITHE (&)
RZE——F+-A=+—H A&EEZ
SERNHRIRFTIE BB A T HAR(EE

Group Company
rEE b NS

2012 2011 2012 2011
US$'000 Us$'000 uss$’000 Us$'000
FER FET FER FEx
Within 1 year —F R 4,679 5,314 = -
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMEF 4,045 4,679 = -
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 1,222 5,267 - -
9,946 15,260 - _

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to and the contractual

RBEMR AEBAAENEREROE

repricing dates at the end of the reporting period are as EHEIEHBHNOT:
follows:
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—BAR —Z=f@A ZEXEA At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTET FET FTET T
At 31 December 2012 N-E——4F
TZA=t—-H
Total borrowings EREE 3,903 12,147 17,169 33,219
At 31 December 2011 R-E——4F
TZA=t—-A
Total borrowings ER-ECE 12,982 8,752 16,339 38,073

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to and the

NREHR  ARRMAENEE ROE

contractual repricing dates at the end of the reporting period EEIERBHAT:
are as follows:
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—fEBAR —Z={@8 ZZAEB At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEL TEx TEx TEn
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—_F
+ZA=+—8
Total borrowings EEnaE - 4,030 - 4,030
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F
+ZA=1—H
Total borrowings BEBE - 5,850 - 5,850
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18 HITHE ()

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end
of the reporting period were as follows:

RBERR AEBERFHNRMT

2012 2011
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ dollar uss$ Dollar
EP e ETT Ak
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.7% 2.4% 3.2% -

The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

RBERR ARBERFHNRMT

2012 2011
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ dollar uss$ Dollar
EP e T ek
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.4% 2.4% 3.2% -

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their
fair value.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

RITEEMREEREAFERSE -

fEEMNREEZRIATEEE:

Group Company
AEE b

2012 2011 2012 2011
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
SEE FET SSESD FET
Us$ =7 32,189 38,073 3,000 5,850
New Taiwan dollar e 1,030 - 1,030 -
33,219 38,073 4,030 5,850
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

19

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities is as

follows:

i IE FR 15 1R

BB IRIE R BERARE B2 &M
EEREREHN I EREXUME B ZH

s
H o
Eas

BIEFTEH (BE) /ABEZOMET

2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPESTE FET
Deferred income tax assets BEEMBHEE
Deferred income tax assets to be #1218 A & Uk 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMGBHEE (58) (42)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHARE
Deferred income tax liabilities to be #1218 B 12 W B 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMEGHAE 6,180 6,538
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEMBHRAEFE 6,122 6,496

The net movement on the deferred income

follows:

tax account is as

EEFTISR B FRMT

2012 2011

us$'000 Us$'000

SFEEm FET

At 1 January n—A—H 6,496 7,513
Income statement credit (Note 24) A E T (KI5E24) (374) (1,017)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H” 6,122 6,496

Provided for in respect of: BT Y S EME LB

2012 2011

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Accelerated tax depreciation IRFH BT E 7,142 7,519
Other temporary differences Hibh s =58 (1,020) (1,023)
6,122 6,496
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

19

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated tax

EFEFRISIR ()
REFRLEMEHREERBE (R RE
58 AR R BN RUARE R B 45 80 AT ) M 2 Bh 1
T

EEFRSHAE

Dividend withholding
tax on undistributed
profits in the

depreciation PRC subsidiary Total
FENEAARD R
MEHBRE RANREFENH At
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000

TR T FET FERT TR FERL
At 1 January ®—A—H 7,519 8,249 - 127 7,519 8,376
Credited to the income statement &F AMi&E & (377) (730) - (127) (377) (857)
At 31 December RTZR=+-H 7,142 7,519 - - 7,142 7,519
According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the BB FBECEMGEE AEEETH
profits of the PRC subsidiary of the Group derived since 1st BENBATE TN NF—A—AREE
January 2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of &M ERD IR TINREEENZS R
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. FIHE10% BB =GR AN TE 0B
Deferred income tax liabilities of US$787,000 (2011: WhREEF BB QR KRE LW E
US$790,000) have not been recognised for the withholding [z B #ERIRERER & E787,000
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of FL(ZZF——4:790,000%T) % ¥
a subsidiary. Such amounts are permanently reinvested. HIEBXABEBRE-R_T—ZF
Unremitted earnings totalled US$9,416,000 at 31 December TZA=t+—HzwmAkELKEEHE
2012 (2011: US$9,440,000). 9,416,000% 7t ( —ZF —— 4 : 9,440,000

ETT) °
Deferred income tax assets BEFESHEE
Other temporary differences
HitbErs=5
2012 2011
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET

At 1 January m—HA—H (1,023) (863)
Charged/(credited) to income statement mea/ (Gt EER 3 (160)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H (1,020) (1,023)
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20 REVENUE 20

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenue recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 was
US$372,922,000 and US$382,900,000 respectively.

i =
AEBEHERHEEBRANMA £
CERERAERMIXER BFEE1H
B BRSO R ERBRRK
H-BE_FT-_FR-_F-——F+=
A=+t—BLEFEZEBRRBKED B 5
372,922,0003% 7T }2382,900,0003 7T °

21 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 21 Htulgs (§iE) — 828
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Net exchange gain/(loss) ME N Wz, (E518) 358 137 (964)
Net loss from sale of electricity HEENBEFE - (10)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWME WEK
plant and equipment FiEl s (BE) 68 (146)
Sale of scrap materials EERHEE 345 412
Others HAth 66 397
616 (311)
22 EXPENSES BY NATURE 22 BMESHEZAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

HERA - & R X RITHF PR

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZRAXDTHT
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Changes in inventories of finished goods BN MIMEERTEEZH
and work in progress 2,499 (12,732)
Raw materials and consumables used 2 A REHE 269,413 302,489
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) & A= #84 ([ 5E8) 1,459 1,487
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) s {55 PR M 8 (B[ RE6) 51 64
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B & 350 350
Depreciation on property, plant and W BEMEREINE
equipment (Note 7) (FI=E7) 23,279 23,596
Impairment charge on property, ME -WER
plant and equipment (Note 7) BEBERZ (M7) 322 4,255
Impairment charge on intangible assets BEEERBERX
(Note 8) (KfE8) 344 -
Operating leases expenses in respect of BRAMETHEERNZ
leasehold land 2 171 163
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EEBRFHE (H28) 28,174 24,654
Provision/(write back of provision) for FEUE 5 BR FURBE A
impairment of trade receivables (Note 13) (B ERE ) (MRE13) 226 (139)
Other expenses E R 37,488 34,544
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $5E MR A - $4E K& 84
expenses and administrative expenses M RITHFA 25 363,776 378,731
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23

24

FINANCE (INCOME)/COSTS - NET 23 MB(BA) ZH-88
2012 2011
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Finance income — interest income on B B A — 52 BB SR 1T 17 3K
short-term bank deposits FEWA (1,457) (741)
Interest expense on bank borrowings HITEENERX 1,121 1,632
Amortisation of discount on long-term FEBREA T 2 RAIFIE
payable to a related party (Note 34(d)) i iy (M 3E34(d)) 90 188
Finance costs BB Sz 1,211 1,820
Finance (income)/costs — net BB (A /S H— 558 (246) 1,079

No interest expenses on bank borrowings have been capitalised
under property, plant and equipment for current year (2011:
Nil).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

BERITEREZF BN AFRRETT
BYE BERRBZEA(ZT——%F:
) e

s

it F B 5 I8 B A R AT E SR B M IR A &R
B2 EMmAERRMERRERTHE-

REARBERATBRZAMEHAX 2

2012 2011

Uss$‘000 Us$'000

FXxt FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EMEH 3,787 6,101
Deferred income tax (Note 19) RIEFTISH (HI5E19) (374) (1,017)
3,413 5,084
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24

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

24 PRI (#)

AR ER B R FT AT 1S B A g A1) ) P 15 750 B2 fid

£}
RAAEEEIZWERR —BERANE
ABEmERIEmTN RN EZREET

subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax B A A1 5 A 9,964 11,021
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of R R15%E
15% (2011: 15%) ME(—T——F:
15% ) 1,495 1,653
Tax effects of different tax rates TRMEZ BB E (186) 220
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes IR d =53 1,504 1,589
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A ZAIARERT B EE
tax losses (71) (10)
Over-provision in prior year TR FERBERE = (127)
Tax losses arising for which no deferred BRERRLEMEMEEM
income tax asset was recognised EEzRBER 671 1,759
Tax charge IS 3,413 5,084

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$23,468,000 (2011: US$21,544,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations in
Vietnam range from 15% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

Xiamen Maotai is entitled to full exemption from EIT for
the first two years and 50% reduction in EIT for the next
three years, commencing from the first profitable year
after offsetting all unexpired tax losses brought forward
from the previous years. Xiamen Maotai has already
triggered its first year of tax exemption entitlement in
2008.
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RIEFSEREEDRIBRARBAZETE
BAKRERHEENERBRAMLEE D
MEBEBEIRR - AEEERERMY
T E5#823,468,000% T (—F — — 4
21,544,0003 Jr ) A] 45 88 DA §5 R 2R B 3R
FBA - ZEBRBEBRERN —FE2RFMH
B

SRR RIS R RGE RS E
BB FT S B BER PR AT IR
B E fE

(i) #Mm=
EWEBRARSEMEEFAER
B AEBEESENESNERCE
i8R ENF15%E25% °

(i) +&E
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BRHERE25% °
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

24

Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 17%.

(iv)

25 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 25
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$8,634,000 (2011: US$4,205,000).

26 DIVIDENDS 26

The dividends paid in 2012 and 2011 were US$6,940,000
(0.455 US cents per ordinary share) and US$3,670,000 (0.240
US cents per ordinary share) respectively. Final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 of 0.145 US
cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend
of US$2,205,000, is to be proposed and approved by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

FRiSMB ()

(i) s EFE
B A S 5 B 50 AR 4R 2 0 4 AT R I3
M EERIES A ERTOEH -
BRIt A7 4 1B R 303/ & B RIS/
Bt o

B
REBEEREMNERNBERCERN
BRER1T% o

(iv)

FOFEBAEGRT

SHARRBBBERENARBEE AR
16 % ¥ 58,634,000 T (Z&E— — 4
4,205,000 7T) °

BR

ZE—ZFREE——F2ENRESD
7l 76,940,000 7T (& i% ¥ 18 1%0.455%
fili) %3,670,0003& 7T (& I & i [%0.240
E) - RBE—_T——F+-_A=+—
AIEFE  BRAKRARE ASRE B
0.1453 1l J& B #4856 /52,205,000 7T °
EREBREBRERERERAFA S 2R
kAR BR L o 7 B TS R AR 30 R B Ut R A

e=N

2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
2012 interim dividend, paid of ENZE—ZFHHRKRE
0.144 US cents (2011 interim: Nil) TR E BAR0. 14431
per ordinary share (ZE——FhH:
) 2,200 -
2012 final dividend, proposed of BE-ZE-——FRAKRES
0.145 US cents (2011: 0.311 US cents) R EBAK0. 1451
per ordinary share (ZZE——%:
0.31131l) 2,205 4,740
4,405 4,740

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed
during 2012 and 2011 have been disclosed in the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

TECER T —FENMNRBIRKREA
BBCRBEEL R AP EZ KNGS
WER RIKEE -
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27

28

29

EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SERET
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the GRERBRIZERNAGEE AEAS
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i M B DA BE N B B 1T B AR A pn A
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHEETE -
during the year.
2012 2011
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit attributable to owners of ZN/NCIE RSN X apinkil
the Company 7,342 7,902
Weighted average number of BBITEBERMNETSH
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (AF5H) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREXREF
(US cents per share) (FREZEA) 0.48 0.52
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per

HE-_Z——FR-ZFT—F+=

share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+—HLFE BREUHEHEET
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. B - SR#EEARNEGRERRBTINE
B
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 EARMMAX(ABEEETRH)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)
2012 2011
USs$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances B R ROER 23,127 20,122
Bonuses ?E?‘I 594 345
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  R{R& KA — & B AT & 2,326 1,837
Other employee benefits Hibfg BRF 2,127 2,350
28,174 24,654
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 29 (EREWIEF
As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group RIBEFEORAEEN  AEBAPEHE
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement F-WEREEBREREMBERE RN TR

plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 12% to 26% (2011: 8% to 22%) of the basic salaries
predetermined by local governments. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees. For the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group has contributed approximately
US$613,000 (2011: US$589,000) to the aforesaid state-
sponsored retirement plans.
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29 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 29 REEREFERN ()

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the BB RB AR NEE R HEER
Group contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social SREXRE A ES T SREBESEIEL#
insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group R AEEEREREEHFEMI7% (ZF——
contributes to the scheme at a rate of 17% (2011: 15%) of F:15% ) Mt EE R BIR & P ey
the employee’s salary. The state-sponsored social insurance HeRBITEEBEARKEEBREMEB
scheme is responsible for the entire obligations payable to RE-BHE2-FT——-F+=-_A=+—HL
retired employees. For the year ended 31 December 2012, FEAEEMEMRBIKE R SRR
the Group has contributed approximately US$1,426,000 AT B 5K41,426,000E T (=T ——F
(2011: US$1,094,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored social 1,094,0003%7T) °
insurance scheme.

30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EERERETEENTM
MANAGEMENT
(a) The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable (a) AFEAEERNARFAEFEMNR

to the directors of the Company by the Group during the FEREHE I T

year are as follows:

2012 2011
us$‘000 Us$'000
FER FET
Fees we 8 -
Basic salaries and allowances [ % &£ RS 1,240 1,109
Discretionary bonuses )15 2% BRAE 4L 594 345
1,842 1,454
None of the directors of the Company waived any REEARBEF W ENEEMH
emoluments during the year (2011: Nil). M (ZF——F &)
The remuneration of every director of the Company for HE-_T——F+=-ZA=+—HL
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below: FERARFSEFNITHEINNT
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
Bt ER
Name of Director 33 he ¢ BERREL (HzE) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEL T£r Tin Tin
Executive Director BrES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEELE 1 338 178 13 530
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 200 12 13 225
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 302 154 13 469
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 125 13 288
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou Bl EE - 125 125 13 263
Non-executive Director FynES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREEE 1 - - 12 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERTE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BRAHEE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa WEREE - - - - -
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen et 2 - - 12 14
Total At 8 1,115 594 125 1,842
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EEREREEEBOHFH (1)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The remuneration of every director and senior BE-Z——F+=ZA=+—H1
management of the Company for the year ended 31 FEARAZEFRAAEEEN
December 2011 is set out below: FENEs T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
EfhER
Name of Director 33 He ¢ BERRRA (Hz) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TERL TERL TEr T TEn
Executive Director BIES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRERE - 341 125 13 479
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - 200 10 13 223
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 305 110 13 428
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 100 13 263
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABELE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung et St - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUksTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERLE - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RABMEE - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen MEERE - - - 12 12
Total ait - 996 345 113 1,454
Note: B &
Other benefits include travelling allowance. H th 48 A 62 45 2= Jik £ B o
(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest (b) AEEAFEANREZESHTMAL
in the Group for the year included five (2011: four) BREAZ(ZT——F W&
executive directors, their emoluments are reflected in the B FEOIMSEREXZENZS
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the MR - RZE——FENTHT
remaining one individual in 2011 were as follows: —BATZEEIT:
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Basic salaries and allowances [ %7 KO£ B - 123
(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to (00 AFEIEMARAFEFTHIAEEH
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid hEEREFMATZNME  ERH
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or as 180 A A& Bl /Y 22 B ok B Bl v (E o

compensation for loss of office.

F-ZFRZF——F+ZA
— B BE R AR AR 1o R AT

There are no outstanding share options as at 31 IS

December 2012 and 2011. +
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EXRERTEBOTM (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Senior management remuneration by band (d EHREEEMEHE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FRIATEHE :
Number of individuals
AE
2012 2011
Emolument bands (in US$) Me#E (Ex)
US$45,001 — US$90,000 45,0013 7T - 90,0003 T 4 5
US$90,001 — US$135,000 90,0013 JT — 135,000% T 5
31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 RBEEZHR &
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Profit before income tax ¥ BT 15 5 A& 7 9,964 11,021
Adjustments for: FLATIER %
— Finance (income)/costs — net (Note 23) -8 (W) /S
— %88 (PF5E23) (246) 1,079
— Share of post tax loss of an associate —JE(h— A R RIRE
(Note 10) &E1E (Msk10) 44 222
— Depreciation of property, plant and —WE WERRERTE
equipment (Note 7) (M3E7) 23,279 23,596
— Provision for impairment of property, —E - WE RERERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) B (H:E7) 322 4,255
— Provision for impairment of —mEEERERE
intangible assets (Note 8) (F5E8) 344 -
— Provision/(write back of provision) —EE ZERFRERE
for impairment of trade receivables /(B EE)
(Note 13) (Ft5E13) 226 (139)
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — & & #54 (Fi:E8) 1,459 1,487
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)  — == 3b {5 FA 18 £
(BtzE6) 51 64
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEME WERERE
plant and equipment (see below) (Wa),/ B8
(RT3 (68) 146
— Gain on disposal of non-current —HERIELE IR
assets held for sale (see below) BEKE (BT - (8,464)
35,375 33,267
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 EBEEZRE(HE)
(continued)
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
FERx FET
Change in working capital (excluding HEESH
the effects of exchange differences on (Ret4r &6 8RE
consolidation) EECEREZRTE)
— Inventories -TE 4,242 (12,145)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and — BB ZER-
other receivables T FRIE K&
H A [l W IR (7,140) 4,155
— Trade payables, accruals and - ENESHER
other payables EstBR R
Ho{th JE S FRIR 2,160 (9,094)
- Net changes in balances with —HBEREQAFREZ
related companies gE)FE 26 (4)
Cash generated from operations X¥BEECZERS 34,663 16,179

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held

EGARLTERN BEVE HER
BB R S ERDEE Y FEREM

for sales comprise: N
2012 2011
US$’000 Us$'000
SRS FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFE (MFE7) 701 442
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME WER&E
plant and equipment (Note 21) Wz, (BE)
(KF&E21) 68 (146)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEME BMEREERS
plant and equipment IR 769 296
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7x FET
Net book amount R E - 12,415
Transfer to land use rights (Note 6) EE T+ A (M5T6) - (1,574)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIELEFRDEE
held for sale (Note 6 (ii) e (B EE6(ii) ) - 8,464
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets HEFIELEFRBDEEZ
held for sale FiSsIR - 19,305
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32 COMMITMENTS 32 RiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end REERBREMRDTHERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARTHIAT
2012 2011
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
Contracted but not provided BRTHB R B E
for Property, plant and equipment Y RE KRR (FEED)
(Note i) 868 2,115
Investment in an associate (Note ii) R—HEBERRZRE
(B &Eii) 3,112 5,190
3,980 7,305
Notes: B &
(i) The Board authorised to study the utility project in Vietnam (i) EEgRE—_FNAEERE
in August 2012. The type and amount are yet to be HUMOWAREBEE#ITHE 6
determined. AR SEEAREE
(i) Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10. iy WEFBRKIE10HE-
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) RERHRIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REBRBIAIHESCEHOM LT
payments in respect of land and building under non- REFRERRRI NN HEEE
cancellable operating leases as follows: FIRMFEMNT
2012 2011
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
No later than one year —F A 121 134
Later than one year and no later —FRERFAN
than five years 456 479
Later than five years AFi% 2,797 3,038
3,374 3,651
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 BRAR
At 31 December 2012, the Company has given guarantees for RN_E—ZFF+ZA=+—H &
bank borrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$99,300,000 NElBEWB AR ZRITEBERMEE
(2011: US$91,800,000) of which US$70,111,000 (2011: fR#99,300,000%€ L (=& — —F:
US$59,578,000) has not been utilised. 91,800,000 7T) * £ 770,111,000 7T
—Z——1%:59,578,000% JT) i# K &)
=
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 FRAEAXES
(a) The table below summarises the related party and nature (@ TEHBAR_ZFT—=—F+=A
of its relationship with the Company as at 31 December =T —AZEBEALTRHEEAR
2012: RIVERILE
Related party Relationship with the Company
FEEAL NN B o R ES
Taiwan Vedan A substantial shareholder of the Company
BB RABMEERRE
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAEBEBAEXBPEEHAEALT
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as EITHEAZ ST
follows:
2012 2011
Note US$°000 Us$'000
B 5 FER FE7T
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan [/ ERHEEEm (i) 2,875 1,313
Technological support fee [ & &R P 2 A B fir
paid to Taiwan Vedan XEB (ii) 2,234 2,734
Agency commission income A & V& R ST ER Y
received from Taiwan Vedan REBASHA (if) 18 57
Notes: B 5
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RAREERABMABEATIE
the related party were conducted in the normal course HrHERTEBEEBKP#ET B
of business at prices and terms no less favourable than B RIGHRTBERANEEEE
those charged to and contracted with other third party FoEREPRHMXMNREIH
customers of the Group. B RIER -
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) ARFAEERAZERFHIEAFE
transactions were carried out in the normal course of ¥ YHRBEABHEL
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the TR o

terms of underlying agreements.

128 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3 EIBS (25%) AR A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BERHEALTEZS(HE)
() Key management compensation (0 TEEEAEMS
The compensation paid or payable to key management, ENKENEEERAS (BEME
including all executive directors and senior management, WITEEREREERE) 2EERE
for employee services is shown below. FENEST -
2012 2011
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other short-term Tk EMEHESRA
employee benefits 2,578 2,178
(d) Year-end balances with the related party (d) EBEEBEEALIZERESH
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had the following R-TE——F+-_fF=+—H K&
significant balances with the related party: EREEEANT ZEFEZEHRDT
2012 2011
Note Us$’000 us$'000
k=g FEx FET
Current: B ER -
Trade receivable from Taiwan FEEERTE SRR
Vedan (Note 13) (M5E13) (i) 105 110
Other receivable from Taiwan H e a 2% 5E
Vedan (i) 9 518
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FEf & BN I RA (i (323) (323)
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan in EREENERENAE
connection with assignment of R P+ 3R IE
trademarks (i) - (2,076)
Notes: B 5
(i) All these balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, (i BERNHE &3 B EIER -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of payment. REREETEERM-
(i) The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan (i) ZHXBEEENREREETEHEM
Vedan for the assignment of certain trademarks. It is BRNAERAZHRELZ AT E.
payable by seven equal annual instalment commencing HAR_ZTLF-A—HE F
on 1 January 2007. The original face amount was AP BEMEFIN - RAEEAR
US$15,014,000 and was discounted to fair value using a 15,014,000 70 WIZEEEIZE
rate based on the borrowing rate of 4.7% at the date of ABZEEMERATEFE 2 FIRE,
assignment of the trademarks (Note 23). BEQNTFAE (MFE23) °
35 BANKING FACILITIES 35 S|MITIEH
Save as disclosed in Notes 18 and 33 to the financial BB R R B sE18 33 AT B & o
statements, the Group’s bank borrowings of US$29,189,000 as AREBRZ-ZZE-—ZF+=ZA=+—
at 31 December 2012 (2011: US$32,223,000) were secured by HZ#ETEE29,189,000E€ L (=%
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and — — % :32,223,0003% T) B BR T
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately E#419,157,000F L (= &F— —F:
US$19,157,000 (2011: US$21,104,000). 21,104,000% 7T ) 2 & TR E B Y % - i

R RE (MaE7) 2 EE MK -
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